
STATE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

I.PARTIES 

This Settlement Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into between the State of 

Califomia ("the State") and PharMerica Corporation ("PharMerica"), hereinafter 

collectively ref:erred to as "the Parties." 

II. PREAMBLE 

As a preamble to this Agreement, the Parties agree to the following: 

A. At all relevant times, PharMerica was a Delaware corporation with a 

1>ri11cipal place of business in Louisville, Kentucky. PharMerica operates approximately 

95 pharmacies in the United States, providing pharmacy services to a1iproximately 

300,000 residents in long-term care and other facilities. 

B. On October 31, 2007, Relator Meredith McCoyd filed a qui tam action in 

the United States District Comt for the Western District of Virginia captioned 11.ni.tM 

States of America and the states of California, De.laware. Florida, Georgia, Hawaij, 

Illinois, Indiana. Louisiana. Massachusetts, Michig~n. Nevada. New Hampshire, New 

Mexico, New Ym'k, Tennessee, Texas. Virginia, and the District ofColumbia. ex rel. 

Meredith McCoyd v. Abbott Laboratories, Civil Action No. l:07cv00081. On June 15, 

2010, Relator Meredith McCoyd filed an Amended Complaint adding additional com1ts 

under lhe false claims statutes for the states of Connecticut, Montana, New Jersey, North 

Carolina. Oklahoma, Rhode Island, Wisconsin, and the City of Chicago. 
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STATE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

I. PARTIES

This Settlement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into between the 
State of California (“the State”) and PharMerica Corporation 
(“PharMerica”), hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Parties.”

II. PREAMBLE

As a preamble to this Agreement, the Parties agree to the 
following:
A.	At all relevant times, PharMerica was a Delaware 
corporation with a principal place of business in Louisville, Kentucky. 
PharMerica operates approximately 95 pharmacies in the United 
States, providing pharmacy services to approximately 300,000 
residents in long-term care and other facilities.
B.	On October 31, 
2007, Relator Meredith McCoyd filed a qui tam action in the United 
States District Court for the Western District of Virginia captioned 
United States of America and the states of California, Delaware, 
Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Louisiana, Massachusetts, 
Michigan, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Mexico, New York, 
Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, and the District of Columbia, ex rel. 
Meredith McCoyd v. Abbott Laboratories, Civil Action No. 
1:07cv00081. On June 15, 2010, Relator Meredith McCoyd filed an 
Amended Complaint adding additional counts under the false claims 
statutes for the states of Connecticut, Montana, New Jersey, North 
Carolina, Oklahoma, Rhode Island, Wisconsin, and the City of 
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On January 21, 2010, Relator Thomas J. Spetter, Jr. filed a qui tam action in the 

United States District Court for the Western District of Virginia captioned United States 

of America and the states of Arkansas, California, Delaware, District of Columbia, 

Florida, Georgia, Hawaji, Illinois. lndiana, Louisiana. Massachusetts. Michigan, 

Missouri. Montana. New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Nevada, 

North Carolina. Oklahoma, Rhode Island, Tennessee, Texas. Virginia and Wisco!lsin, ex 

rel. Thomas J. Spetter, Jr. v. Abbott Laboratories. Inc., Civil Action No. 1:JOcv00006. 

On February 16, 20 I0, Relator Thomas J. Spetter filed a First Amended Complaint 

adding an additional count under the false claims statute for the state ofConnecticut, and 

removing counts under the false claims statutes for Arkansas and Missouri. On 

December 3,2010, Relator Thomas J. Spetter, Jr. filed a Second Amended Complaint 

adding additional counts under the false claims statutes for the states ofColOl'ado, 

Maryland, and Minnesota. 

The qui tam actions were consolidated in the United States District Court for the 

Western District of Virginia on June 29,2011 under Civil Action I:07cv00081 and will 

be referred to collectively as the "Civil Actions." 

C. PharMerica has entered into a separate civil settlement agreement (the 

"Federal Settlement Agreement") with the United States ofAmerica (as that term is 

defined in the Federal Settlement Agreement) hereinafter referred to as the "United 

States." 

D. The State contends that PharMerica caused claims for payment to be 

submitted to the State's Medicaid Program (see 42 U.S.C. §§ 1396-1396(v)). 
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On January 21, 2010, Relator Thomas J. Spetter, Jr. filed a qui 
tam action in the United States District Court for the Western 
District of Virginia captioned United States of America and the 
States of Arkansas, California, Delaware, District of Columbia, 
Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Louisiana, 
Massachusetts, Michigan, Missouri, Montana, New Hampshire, 
New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Nevada, North Carolina, 
Oklahoma, Rhode Island, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia and 
Wisconsin, ex rel. Thomas J. Spetter, Jr. v. Abbott Laboratories, 
Inc., Civil Action No. 1:10cv00006. On February 16, 2010, 
Relator Thomas J. Spetter filed a First Amended Complaint 
adding an additional count under the false claims statute for the 
state of Connecticut, and removing counts under the false claims 
statutes for Arkansas and Missouri. On December 3, 2010, 
Relator Thomas J. Spetter, Jr. filed a Second Amended 
Complaint adding additional counts under the false claims 
statutes for the states of Colorado, Maryland, and 
Minnesota.
	The qui tam actions were consolidated in the 
United States District Court for the Western District of Virginia on 
June 29, 2011 under Civil Action 1:07cv0081 and will be referred 
to collectively as the “Civil Actions.”
	C. PharMerica has 
entered into a separate civil settlement agreement (the “Federal 
Settlement Agreement”) with the United States of America (as 
that term is defined in the Federal Settlement Agreement) 
hereinafter referred to as the “United States.”
	D. The State 
contends that PharMerica caused claims for payment to be 
submitted to the State’s Medicaid Program (see 42 U.S.C. 
sections 1396-1396(v)). Page 2 of 15
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E. The State contends that it has certain civil and administrative cau·ses of 

action against PharMerica for engaging in the following conduct: 

Knowingly soliciting and receiving illegal remuneration from drug manufacturer 

Abbott Laboratories ("Abbott") in the form of rebate agreements that required 

PharMerica to engage in certain promotional programs, grnnts, and other financial 

support. The remuneration was intended to induce PharMerica to promote and/or 

purchase Abbott's prescription drug Depakote in violation of the state anti-kickback 

statutes, the state False Claims Act and the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 

1320a-7b(b), between January I, 2001 and December 31, 2008. As a result, the State 

alleges that PharMerica knowingly submitted or caused to be submitted false and/or 

fraudulent claims for Depakote to Medicaid (the "Covered Conduct"). 

F. This Agreement is neither an admission of facts or liability by PharMerica, 

nor a concession by the State that its allegations are not well founded. PharMerica 

expressly denies the allegations of the State as set forth herein and in the Civil Actions. 

G. To avoid the delay, expense, inconvenience, and uncertainty ofprotracted 

litigation of these causes of action, the Patties mutually desire to reach a fttll and final 

settlement as set forth below. 

III. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in reliance on the l'Cpresentations contained herein and in 

consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and obligations set forth in this 

Agreement, and for good and valuable consideration as stated herein, the Parties agree as 

follows: 
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E. The State contends that it has certain civil and administrative 
causes of action against PharMerica for engaging in the following 
conduct:
	Knowingly soliciting and receiving illegal remuneration 
from drug manufacturer Abbottt Laboratories (“Abbott”) in the form 
of rebate agreements that required PharMerica to engage in certain 
promotional programs, grants, and other financial support. The 
remuneration was intended to induce PharMerica to promote and/or 
purchase Abbott’s prescription drug Depakote in violation of the 
state anti-kickback statutes, the state False Claims Act and the 
Federal Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. section 1320a-7b(b), 
between January 1, 2001 and December 31, 2008. As a result, the 
State alleges that PharMerica knowingly submitted or caused to be 
submitted false and/or fraudulent claims for Depakote to Medicaid 
(the “Covered Conduct”).
	F. This Agreement is neither an 
admission of facts or liability by PharMerica, nor a concession by 
the State that its allegations are not well founded. PharMerica 
expressly denies the allegations of the State set forth herein and in 
the Civil Actions.
	G. To avoid the delay, expense, 
inconvenience, and uncertainty of protracted litigation of these 
causes of action, the Parties mutually desire to reach a full and final 
settlement as set forth below.

III. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

NOW, THEREFORE, in reliance on the representations contained 
herein and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and 
obligations set forth in this Agreement, and for good and valuable 
consideration as stated herein, the Parties agree as follows:
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1. PharMerica agrees to pay to the United States and the Medicaid 

Participating States (as defined hereinafter), collectively, the sum of Nine Million, Two 

Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($9,250,000), plus accrned interest on that amount of 

2.125% per annum commencing on November 24, 2014 and continuing and including the 

day final payment is made under this Agreement (collectively, the "Settlement Amount"). 

The Settlement Amount shall constitute a debt immediately due and owing to the United 

States and the Medicaid Patticipating States on the Effective Date of the Federal 

Settlement Agreement and subject to the terms of this Agreement. The debt shall forever 

be discharged by payments to the United States and the Medicaid Participating States, 

under the following terms and conditions: 

(a) PharMerica shall pay to the United States the sum of 

$6,749,565.00, plus accrued interest on that amount at the rate of2. l25% per annum 

commencing on November 24, 2014 ("Federal Settlement Amount"). The Federal 

Settlement Amount shall be paid pursuant to the te1ms of the Federal Settlement 

Agreement. 

(b) PharMerica shall pay to the Medicaid Participating States the sum 

of$2,500,435.00, plus accrued interest on that amount of2.125% per annum 

commencing on November 24, 2014 and continuing and including the day payment in 

full is made ("Medicaid State Settlement Amount"), subject to the non-participating state 

deduction provision of sub-paragraph (d) below ("Medicaid Participating State 

Settlement Amount"), in accordance with the State Payment Schedule attached hereto as 

Exhibit A. PharMerica shall pay the Medicaid Participating States no later than seven 
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1.	PharMerica agrees to pay to the United States and the 
Medicaid Participating States (as defined hereinafter), collectively, 
the sum of Nine Million, Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($9,250,000), plus accrued interest on that amount of 2.125% per 
annum commencing on November 24, 2014 and continuing and 
including the day final payment is made under this Agreement 
(collectively, the “Settlement Amount”). The Settlement Amount 
shall constitute a debt immediately due and owing to the United 
States and the Medicaid Participating States on the Effective Date 
of the Federal Settlement Agreement and subject to the terms of 
this Agreement. The debt shall forever be discharged by 
payments to the United States and the Medicaid Participating 
States, under the following terms and 
conditions:
(a)	PharMerica shall pay to the United States the 
sum of $6,749,565.00, plus accrued interest on that amount at the 
rate of 2.125% per annum commencing on November 24, 2014 
(“Federal Settlement Amount”). The Federal Settlement Amount 
shall be paid pursuant to the terms of the Federal Settlement 
Agreement.
(b)	PharMerica shall pay to the Medicaid 
Participating States the sum of $2,500,435.00, plus accrued 
interest on that amount of 2.125% per annum commencing on 
November 24, 2014 and continuing and including the day 
payment in full is made (“Medicaid State Settlement Amount”), 
subject to the non-participating state deduction provision of 
sub-paragraph (d) below (“Medicaid Participating State Settlement 
Amount”), in accordance with the State Payment Schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. PharMerica shall pay the Medicaid 
Participating States no later than seven
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(7) business days after the expil'ation of the 45 day opt-in period for Medicaid 

Participating States described in sub-paragraph (c) below. Medicaid Paiticipating States 

receiving a settlement amount of more than $25,000 will receive payment in accordance 

with the State Payment Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. Medicaid Participating 

States that are receiving a settlement amount of $25,000 or less will receive a one-time 

lump sum payment no later than seven (7) business days after the expiration of the 45 day 

opt-in period for Medicaid Participating States. The Medicaid Participating State 

Settlement Amount shall be paid by electronic funds transfers to the New York State 

Attorney General's National Global Settlement Account pursuant to written instructions 

from the National Association of Medicaid Fraud Control appointed State Negotiating 

Team ("State Team"), which written instructions shall he delivered to counsel for 

PharMerica. The entire principal balance of the Medicaid State Settle!J1ent Amount or 

any portion thereof, plus any interest accrued on the principal as of the date ofany 

pmpayment, may be prepaid at any time without penalty. 

(c) PharMerica shall execute a State Settlement Agreement with any 

State that executes such an Agreement in the form to which PharMerica and the State 

Team have agreed or in a form otherwise agreed to by PharMerica and an individual 

State. The State shall constitute a Medicaid Participating State provided the Agreement 

is fully executed by the State and delivered to PharMerica's attorneys within 45 days of 

receiving this Agreement. If this condition is not satisfied within 45 days, PharMerica's 

offer to resolve this matter with the individual State shall become null and void absent 
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(7) business days after the expiration of the 45 day opt-in period for 
Medical Participating States described in sub-paragraph (c) below. 
Medicaid Participating States receiving a settlement amount of more 
$25,000 will receive payment in accordance with the State Payment 
Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. Medicaid Participating States that 
are receiving a settlement amount of $25,000 or less will receive a 
one-time lump sum payment no later than seven (7) business days after 
the expiration of the 45 day opt-in period for Medicaid Participating 
States. The Medicaid Participating State Settlement Amount shall be paid 
by electronic funds transfers to the New York State Attorney General’s 
National Global Settlement Account pursuant to written instructions from 
the National Association of Medicaid Fraud Control appointed State 
Negotiating Team (“State Team”), which written instructions shall be 
delivered to counsel for PharMerica. The entire principal balance of the 
Medicaid State Settlement Amount or any portion thereof, plus any 
interest accrued on the principal as of the date of any prepayment, may 
be prepaid at any time without penalty.
	(c) PharMerica shall execute 
a State Settlement Agreement with any State that executes such an 
Agreement in the form to which PharMerica and the State Team have 
agreed or in a form otherwise agreed to by PharMerica and the State 
Team have agreed or in a form otherwise agreed to by PharMerica and 
an individual State. The State shall constitute a Medicaid Participating 
State provided the Agreement is fully executed by the State and 
delivered to PharMerica’s attorneys within 45 days of receiving this 
Agreement. If this condition is not satisfied within 45 days, PharMerica’s 
offer to resolve this matter with the individual State shall become null and 
void absent
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written agreement between counsel for PharMerica and the State Team to extend the 45 

day period. 

(d) The total portion of the amount paid by PharMerica in settlement 

for the Covered Conduct for the State is $973,364.74, consisting of a portion paid to the 

State under this Agreement and another portion paid to the United States as part of the 

Federal Settlement Agreement. The amount allocated to the State under this Agreement 

is the sum of$568,576.18, plus applicable interest (the "State Amount"), Ifthe State 

does not execute this Agreement withln 45 days of receiving this Settlement Agreement, 

the State Amount shall be deducted from the Medicaid State Settlement Amount and 

shall not be paid by PharMerica absent written agreement between counsel for 

PharMerica and the State Team to extend the time period for executing this Agreement. 

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is the State Payment Schedule to be paid directly by 

electronic funds transfers to the New York State Attorney General's National Global 

Settlement Account pursuant to written instructions from the State Team. 

2. Medicaid Participating States that are receiving a settlement amount of 

$25,000 or Jess agree to dismiss with prejudice any state law claims which the State has 

the authol'ity to dismiss curtently pending against PharMerica in State or Federal Courts 

for the Covered Conduct including any supplemental state Jaw claims asserted in the 

Civil Actions. Medicaid Participating States that are receiving more than $25,000 agree 

to dismiss without prejudice any state law claims which the State has the autlmrity to 

dismiss currently pending against PharMerica in State or Federal Courts for the Covered 

Conduct including any supplemental state law claims asserted in the Civil Actions upon 
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written agreement between counsel for PharMerica and the 
State Team to extend the 45 day period.
	(d) The total portion 
of the amount paid by PharMerica in settlement for the Covered 
Conduct for the State is $973,364.74, consisting of a portion paid 
to the State under this Agreement and another portion paid to 
the United States as part of the Federal Settlement Agreement. 
The amount allocated to the State under this Agreement is the 
sum of $568,576.18, plus applicable interest (the “State 
Amount”). If the State does not execute this Agreement within 45 
days of receiving this Settlement Agreement, the State Amount 
shall be deducted from the Medicaid State Settlement Amount 
and shall not be paid by PharMerica absent written agreement 
between counsel for PharMerica and the State Team to extend 
the time period for executing this Agreement. Attached hereto as 
Exhibit A is the State Payment Schedule to be paid directly by 
electronic funds transfers to the New York State Attorney 
General’s National Global Settlement Account pursuant to 
written instructions from the State Team. 
	2. Medicaid 
Participating States that are receiving a settlement amount of 
$25,000 or less agree to dismiss with prejudice any state law 
claims which the State has the authority to dismiss currently 
pending against PharMerica in State or Federal Courts for the 
Covered Conduct including any supplemental state law claims 
asserted in the Civil Actions. Medicaid Participating States that 
are receiving more than $25,000 agree to dismiss without 
prejudice any state law claims which the State has the authority 
to dismiss currently pending against PharMerica in State or 
Federal Courts for the Covered Conduct including any 
supplemental state law claims asserted in the Civil Actions upon
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payment of the first installment amount. Contingent upon the receipt of their respective 

State Amounts, the State agrees to pay, as soon as feasible after such receipt, agreed upon 

amounts that have been addressed via side letters with the Relators in the Civil Actions. 

3. In the event that PharMerica fails to make any payment identified in the 

State Payment Schedule, PharMerica shall be in Default of its payment obligations 

(hereinafter "Default"). In the event of Default, the remaining unpaid balance of the 

Medicaid State Settlement Amount ("Remaining Settlement Amount") shall become 

immediately due and payable, and interest shall accrue at the rate of 12% per annum 

compounded daily from the date ofDefault until all amounts have been paid in full. 

PharMerica shall consent to II Consent Judgment in the amount of the Remaining 

Settlement Amount and interest due, and the State, at its sole option, may: (a) offset the 

Remaining Settlement Amount from any amounts due and owing to PharMerica by any 

department, agency or agent of the State at the time of Default; (b) collect the entire 

Remaining Settlement Amount, plus interest including 12% interest from the date of 

Default, and all other amounts due upon the event of Default as specified in this 

Paragraph; or (c) exercise any other rights granted by Jaw or in equity, including but not 

limited to referring such matters for J:lrivate collection. PharMerica agrees not to contest 

any consent judgment or offset imposed and PharMerica agrees not to contest, and hereby 

waives and discharges any defenses to, any collection action undertaken by the State or 

its agents or contmctors pursuant to this Paragraph, either administratively or in any. state 

or federal court. PharMerica shall pay the State all reasonable costs ofcollection and 

enforcement under this Paragraph. 
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payment of the first installment amount. Contingent upon the 
receipt of their respective State Amounts, the State agrees to pay, 
as soon as feasible after such receipt, agreed upon amounts that 
have been addressed via side letters with the Relators in the Civil 
Actions.
	3. In the event that PharMerica fails to make any 
payment identified in the State Payment Schedule, PharMerica 
shall be in Default of its payment obligations (hereinafter 
“Default”). In the event of Default, the remaining unpaid balance of 
the Medicaid State Settlement Amount (“Remaining Settlement 
Amount”) shall become immediately due and payable, and interest 
shall accrue at the rate of 12% per annum compounded daily from 
the date of Default until all amounts have been paid in full. 
PharMerica shall consent to a Consent Judgement in the amount 
of the Remaining Settlement Amount and interest due, and the 
State, at its sole option, may: (a) offset the Remaining Settlement 
Amount from any amounts due and owing to PharMerica by any 
department, agency or agent of the State at the time of Default; 
(b) collect the entire Remaining Settlement Amount, plus interest 
including 12% interest from the date of Default, and all other 
amounts due upon the event of Default as specified in this 
Paragraph; or (c) exercise any other rights granted by law or in 
equity, including but not limited to referring such matters for 
private collection. PharMerica agrees not to consent any consent 
judgmentor offset imposed and PharMerica agrees not to consent, 
and hereby waives and discharges any defenses to, any collection 
action undertaken by the State or its agents or contractors 
pursuant to this Paragraph, either administratively or in any state 
or federal court. PharMerica shall pay the State all reasonable 
costs of collection and enforcement under this Paragraph.
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4. Subject to the exceptions in Paragraph 5 below, in consideration of the 

obligations of PharMerica set fo1th in this Agreement, and conditioned upon receipt by 

the State of its entire share of the Medicaid State Settlement Amount, the State agrees to 

release Pha1Merica, its predecessors and current and former parents, divisions, 

subsidiaries, successors, transferees, heirs, and assigns, and their current and former 

directors, officers, and employees, individually and collectively (collectively, the 

"PharMerica Released Entities"), from any civil or administrative monetary cause of 

action that the State has for any claims submitted or caused to be submitted to the State 

Medicaid Program as a result of the Covered Conduct. 

5. Notwithstanding any term of this Agreement, the State specifically does 

not release any person or entity from any of the following liabilities: 

(a) any criminal, civil, or administrntive liability arising under state 

revenue codes; 

(b) any criminal liability not specifically released by this Agreement; 

(c) any civil or administrative liability that any person or entity, including 

any PharMerica Released Entities, has or may have to the State or to individual 

consumers or state program payors under any statute, regulation or rule not expressly 

covered by the release in Paragraph 4 above, including but not limited to, any and all of 

the following claims: (i) State or federal antitrust violations; (ii) claims involving m1fair 

and/or deceptive acts and practices and/or violations ofconsumer protection laws; 

(d) any liability to the State for any conduct other than the Covered 

Conduct; 
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4. Subject to the exceptions in Paragraph 5 below, in 
consideration of the obligations of PharMercia set for in this 
Agreement, and conditioned upon receipt by the State of its entire 
share of the Medicaid State Settlement Amount, the State agrees 
to release PharMerica, its predecessors and current and former 
parents, divisions, subsidiaries, successors, transferees, heirs, 
and assigns, and their current and former directors, officers, and 
employees, individually and collectively (collectively, the 
“PharMerica Released Entities”), from any civil or administrative 
monetary cause of action that the State has for any claims 
submitted or caused to be submitted to the State Medicaid 
Program as a result of the Covered Conduct.
5. Notwithstanding 
any term of this Agreement, the State specifically does not 
release any person or entity from any of the following 
liabilities:
(a) any criminal, civil, or administrative liability arising 
under state revenue codes;
(b) any criminal liability not 
specifically released by this Agreement;
(c) any civil or 
administrative liability that any person or entity, including any 
PharMerica Released Entities, has or may have to the State or to 
individual consumers or state program payors under any statute, 
regulation or rule not expressly covered by the release in 
Paragraph 4 above, including but not limited to, any and all of the 
following claims: (i) State or federal antitrust violations; (ii) claims 
involving unfair and/or deceptive acts and practices and/or 
violations of consumer protection laws;
(d) any liability to the 
State for any conduct other than the Covered Conduct;
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(e) any liability which may be asserted on behalf of any other payors or 

insurers, including those that are paid by the State's Medicaid program on a capitated 

basis; 

(J) any liability based upon obligations created by this Agreement; 

(g) e)(cept as explicitly stated in this Agreement, any administrative 

liability, including mandatory exclusions from the State's Medicaid program; 

(h) any liability for expressed or implied warranty claims or other claims 

for defective or deficient products and services provided by PharMerica; 

(i) any liability for personal injury or property damage or for other 

consequential damages arising from the Covered Conduct; or 

(i) any liability based on a failure to deliver goods or services due. 

6. In consideration of the obligations of PharMerica set forth in this 

Agreement and conditioned on receipt by the State of its share of the State Medicaid 

Settlement Amount, the State agrees to release and refrain from instituting, 

recommending, directing, or maintaining any administrative action seeking exclusion 

from the State's Medicaid program against PharMerica for the Covered Conduct, except 

11s reserved in Paragraph 5 above. Nothing in this Agreement precludes the State from 

taking action against PharMerica in the event that PharMerica is excluded by the federal 

government, defaults pursuant to Paragraph 3 above, or for conduct and practices other 

than the Covered Conduct. 
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(e) any liability which may be asserted on behalf of any other 
payors or insurers, including those that are paid by the State’s 
Medicaid program on a capitated basis;
(f) any liability based 
upon obligations created by this Agreement;
(g) except as 
explicitly stated in this Agreement, any administrative liability, 
including mandatory exclusions from the State’s Medicaid 
program;
(h) any liability for expressed or implied warranty 
claims or other claims for defective or deficient products and 
services provided by PharMerica;
(i) any liability for personal 
injury or property damage or for other consequential damages 
arising from the Covered Conduct; or
(j) any liability based on 
a failure to deliver goods or services due.
6. In consideration 
of the obligations of PharMerica set forth in this Agreement 
and conditioned on receipt by the State of its share of the 
State Medicaid Settlement Amount, the State agrees to 
release and refrain from instituting, recommending, directing, 
or maintaining any administrative action seeking exclusion 
from the State’s Medicaid program against PharMerica for the 
Covered Conduct, except as reserved in Paragraph 5 above. 
Nothing in this Agreement precludes the State from taking 
action against PharMerica in the event that PharMerica is 
excluded by the federal government, defaults pursuant to 
Paragraph 3 above, or for conduct and practices other than the 
Covered Conduct.
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7. PharMerica waives and shall not assert any defenses it may have to 

criminal prosecution or administrative action for the Covered Conduct, which defenses 

may be based in whole or in part on a contention, under the Double Jeopardy Clause of 

the Fifth Amendment of the Constitution or the Excessive Fines Clause of the Eighth 

Amendment of the Constitution, that this Agreement bars a remedy sought in such 

criminal prosecution or administrative action. 

8. In consideration of the obligations of the State set fo1th in this Agreement, 

PharMerica waives and discharges the State, its agencies, political subdivisions, 

employees, servants, and agents from any causes of action which PharMerica has 

asserted, could have asserted, or may assert in the future against the State, its agencies, 

political subdivisions, employees, servants, and agents, arising from the State's 

investigation and prosecution of the Covered Conduct. However, nothing in this 

agreement shall be construed as releasing the Pharmerica released entities from any 

obligation under 31 U.S.C. § 3730(d) or applicable state laws, for payment ofRelators' 

reasonable attorney's fees and costs. 

9. The amount that PharMerica must pay to the State pursuant to Paragraph 

Ill. I. above will not be decreased as a result of the denial ofclaims for payment now 

being withheld from payment by the State's Medicaid program, or any other state payor, 

for the Covered Conduct; and PharMerica agrees not to resubmit to the State's Medicaid 

program or any other state payor, any previously denied claims, which denials were 

based on the Covered Conduct, and agrees not to appeal or cause the appeal ofany such 

denials of claims. 
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7. PharMerica waives and shall not assert any defenses it may have 
to criminal prosecution or administrative action for the Covered 
Conduct, which defenses may be based in whole or in part on a 
contention, under the Double Jeopardy Clause of the Fifth 
Amendment of the Constitution or the Excessive Fines Clause of the 
Eight Amendment of the Constitution, that this Agreement bars a 
remedy sought in such criminal prosecution or administrative 
action.
8. In consideration of the obligations of the State set forth in 
this Agreement, PharMerica waives and discharges the State, its 
agencies, political subdivisions, employees, servants, and agents 
from any causes of action which PharMerica has asserted, could 
have asserted, or may assert in the future against the State, its 
agencies, political subdivisions, employees, servants, and agents, 
arising from the State’s investigation and prosecution of the Covered 
Conduct. However, nothing in this agreement shall be construed as 
releasing the PharMerica released entities from any obligation under 
31 U.S.C. section 3730(d) or applicable state laws, for payment of 
Relators’ reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.
9. The amount that 
PharMerica must pay to the State pursuant to Paragraph III.1. above 
will not be decreased as a result of the denial of claims for payment 
now being withheld from payment by the State’s Medicaid program, 
or any other state payor, for the Covered Conduct; and PharMerica 
agrees not to resubmit to the State’s Medicaid program or any other 
state payor, any previously denied claims, which denials were based 
on the Covered Conduct, and agrees not to appeal or cause the 
appeal of any such denials of claims.
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l0. PharMerica, in the future, shall not seek payment for any claims for 

reimbursement to the State's Medicaid Program covered by this Ag!'eement from any 

health care beneficiaries or their parents, sponsors, legally responsible individuals, or 

third party payors. 

11. PharMerica expressly warrants that it has reviewed its financial condition 

and that it is currently solvent within the meaning of 11 U.S.C. §§ 547(b)(3) and 

548(a)(B)(ii)(I), and shall remain solvent following payment of the entire Settlement 

Amount and compliance with this Agreement. 

12. The Parties each represent that this Agreement is freely and voluntarily 

ell!ered into without any degree of duress or compulsion whatsoever. 

13. PharMerica agrees to cooperate fully and truthfully with any State 

investigation of individuals or entities not released in this Agreement, related to the Civil 

Actions. Upon reasonable notice, PharMerica shall facilitate, and agrees not to impair, 

the cooperation of its directors, officers, employees or agents, for interviews and 

testimony, consistent with the rights and privileges ofsuch individuals and of 

PharMerica. Upon request, PharMerica agrees to furnish to the State complete and 

unredacted copies of all non-privileged documents including, but not limited to, reports, 

memoranda of interviews, and records in their possession, custody or control, concerning 

the Covered Conduct. PharMerica shall be responsible for all costs it may incur in 

complying with this paragraph. 
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10. PharMerica, in the future, shall not seek payment for any claims 
for reimbursement to the State’s Medicaid Program covered by this 
Agreement from any health care beneficiaries or their parents, 
sponsors, legally responsible individuals, or third party payors.
11. 
PharMerica expressly warrants that it has reviewed its financial 
condition and that it is currently solvent within the meaning of 11 
U.S.C. sections 547(b)(3) and 548(a)(B)(ii)(1), and shall remain 
solvent following payment of the entire Settlement Amount and 
compliance with this Agreement.
12. The Parties each represent 
that this Agreement is freely and voluntarily entered into without any 
degree of duress or compulsion whatsoever.
13. PharMerica 
agress to cooperate fully and truthfully with any State investigation 
of individuals or entities not released in this Agreement, related to 
the Civil Actions. Upon reasonable notice, PharMerica shall 
facilitate, and agrees not to impair, the cooperation of its directors, 
officers, employees or agents, for interviews and testimony, 
consistent with the rights and privileges of such individuals and of 
PharMerica. Upon request, PharMerica agrees to furnish to the 
State complete and unredacted copies of all non-privileged 
documents including, but not limited to, reports, memoranda of 
interviews, and records in their possession, custody or control, 
concerning the Covered Conduct. PharMerica shall be responsible 
for all costs it may incur in complying with this paragraph.
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14. Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, each Party 

to this Agreement shall bear its own legal and other costs incurred in connection with this 

matter, including the preparation and performance of this Agreement. 

15. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, this Agreement is intended 

to be for the benefit of the Parties only, and by this instrument the Patties do not i-elease 

any liability against any other person or entity. 

16. Nothing in this Agreement constitutes an ag1-eement by the State 

concerning the characterization of the amounts paid hereunder for purposes of the State's 

revenue code. 

17. In addition to all other payments and responsibilities under this 

Agreement, PharMerica agrees to pay all reasonable expenses and travel costs of the 

State Team, including reasonable consultant fees and eKpenses. PharMerica will pay this 

amount by separate check made payable to the National Association of Medicaid Fraud 

Control Units, after the Medicaid Participating States execute their respective 

Agreements, or as otherwise agreed by the Parties. PharMerica also agrees to pay any 

invoiced amount(s) for costs incm'l'ed by the New York State Attorney General's Office 

for distributing timed payments to Medicaid Participating States receiving more than 

$25,000. 

18. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State, except disputes 

arising under any CJA shall be resolved exclusively under the dispute resolution 

provisions of the CIA, and venue for addressing and resolving any and all disputes 

relating to this Agreement shall be the state courts of appropriate jurisdiction of the State. 
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14. Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, each Party to this Agreement shall 
bear its own legal and other costs incurred in connection with this matter, including the preparation and 
performance of this Agreement.
15. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, this Agreement is 
intended to be for the benefit of the Parties only, and by this instrument the Parties do not release any 
liability against any other person or entity.
16. Nothing in this Agreement constitutes an agreement by 
the State concerning the characterization of the amounts paid hereunder for purposes of the State’s 
revenue code.
17. In addition to all other payments and responsibilities under this Agreement, 
PharMerica agrees to pay all reasonable expenses and travel costs of the State Team, including 
reasonable consultant fees and expenses. PharMerica will pay this amount by separate check made 
payable to the National Association of Medicaid Fraud Control Units, after the Medicaid Participating 
States execute their respective Agreements, or as otherwise agreed by the Parties. PharMerica also 
agrees to pay any invoiced amount(s) for costs incurred by the New York State Attorney General’s Office 
for distributing timed payments to Medicaid Participating States receiving more than $25,000.
18. This 
Agreement is governed by the laws of the State, except disputes arising under any CIA shall be resolved 
exclusively under the dispute resolution provisions of the CIA, and venue for addressing and resolving 
any and all disputes relating to this Agreement shall be the state courts of appropriate jurisdiction of the 
State.
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19. The undersigned PharMerica signatories represent and warmnt that they 

are authorized as a result of appropriate corporate action to execute this Agreement. The 

undersigned State signatories represent that they are signing this Agreement in their 

official capacities and that they are authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the 

State through their respective agencies and deprutments. 

20. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date of signature of the 

last signatory to this Agreement. Facsimiles of signatures shall constitute acceptable 

binding signatures for purposes of this Agreement. 

21. This Agreement shall be binding on all successors, transferees, heirs, and 

assigns of the Parties. 

22. This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement between the Parties 

with respect to this matter and shall not be amended except by wl'itten consent of the 

Parties. 

23. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 

constitute an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 
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19. The undersigned PharMerica signatories represent and 
warrant that they are authorized as a result of appropriate 
corporate action to execute this Agreement. The undersigned 
State signatories represent that they are signing this Agreement 
in their official capacities and that they are authorized to 
execute this Agreement on behalf of the State through their 
respective agencies and departments.
20. The Effective Date 
of this Agreement shall be the date of signature of the last 
signatory to this Agreement. Facsimiles of signatures shall 
constitute acceptable binding signatures for purposes of this 
Agreement.
21. This Agreement shall be binding on all 
successors, transferees, heirs, and assigns of the Parties.
22. 
This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement between 
the Parties with respect to this matter and shall not be amended 
except by written consent of the Parties.
23. This Agreement 
may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute 
an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Medicaid Fraud Control Unit: 

By: Dated: _____ 

Carlotta Hivoral 
Deputy Attorney General 

Bureau of Medi-Cal Fmud and Elder Abuse 

Office of the Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 
1455 Frazee Road, SUite 315 
San Diego, CA 92108-4304 

Medicaid Program: 

Original Signed By
By: Dated: S/2.1:r/ J'S 

Jennifo nt 
Director 
Depariment of Health Care Services 
MS 0000 
P.O. Box 997413 

Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Medicaid Fraud Control Unit:

By:
Carlotta Hivoral
Deputy Attorney 
General
Bureau of Medi-Cal Fraud and Elder 
Abuse
Office of the Attorney General 

California Department of Justice
1455 
Frazee Road, Suite 315
San Diego, CA 
92108-4304
Dated:

Medicaid Program:

By: Original Signed By
Jennifer 
Kent
Director
Department of Health 
Care Services
MS 0000
P.O. Box 
997413
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Medicaid Fraud Control Unit: 

By: 
Original Signed By 

Carlotta Hivoral 

Deputy Attorney General 

Bureau of Medi-Cal Fraud and Elder Abuse 

Office of the Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 

1455 Frazee Road, Suite 315 

San Diego, CA 92 l 08-4304 


Medicaid Program: 

Original Signed By 
By: --------------- Dated: ____ _ 

Jennifer Kent 

Director 

Department of Health Care Services 

MSOOOO 

P.O. Box 997413 

Sacramento, CA 95899-74 l 3 
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Medicaid Fraud Control Unit:

By: Original Signed By
Carlotta Hivoral
Deputy 
Attorney General
Bureau of Medi-Cal Fraud and 
Elder Abuse
Office of the Attorney 
General
California Department of Justice
1455 
Frazee Road, Suite 315
San Diego, CA 
92108-4304
Dated: August 27, 2015

Medicaid Program: 

By: Original Signed By
Jennifer Kent
Director
Department of Health Care Services
MS 
0000
P.O. Box 997413
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413
Dated:
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Thmnasu;; .
�. 

PHARMERICA CORPORATION 

Original Signed By 
By: 

:senior Vice President and General Counsel 

Authorized Corporate Officer 

-By: 

Michael 
thel � 

Original Signed By 
Dated: /Q(,r U& 

Counsel to PharMerica Corporation 


' 
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PHARMERICA CORPORATION

By: Original Signed By
Thomas A. Caneris
Senior 
Vice President and General Counsel
Authorized 
Corporate Officer
Dated: 10/5/15

By: Original Signed By
Michael 
Manthel
Counsel to PharMerica 
Corporation
Dated: 10/5/15
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Exhibit A 

State of California 

Payment Date Principal Interest Total Payment 
At Settlement $188,576.62 To be determined To be determined 
April 20, 2016 $147,356.56 $3,740.86 $151,097.43 
April 20, 2017 $147,356.56 $6,402.49 $153,759.06 

Exhibit A 

State of California 

At Settlement $188,576.62 To be determined To be determined
April 20, 2016 $147,356.56 $3,740.86 $151,097.43
April 20, 2017 $147,356.56 $6,402.49 $153,759.06
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